
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 12, 2021, 7:00 PM 
ZOOM MEETING 

 (INSTRUCTIONS TO JOIN VIRTUAL MEETING PROVIDED BELOW) 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER: 
 
II.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (on non-agenda items): 
 
III.  ACTIVE BUSINESS:  

1. Report: Tolland County Chamber of Commerce 
2. Report:  Agricultural Initiatives 
3. Report:  Connecticut Economic Development Association Best Practices 

a. Discuss future business events. 
b. Discuss 2019 Plan of Conservation & Development Chapter 6 Economic 

Development Strategies and Market Analysis, Business Informational Packet, and 
EDC webpage. 

4. Report:  Tax Incentive/Abatement Programs 
5. Report:  Current Economic Activity 

 
IV.  ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

1. Approval of the April 14, 2021 regular meeting minutes. 
2. Correspondence: 

V.   ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Note:  Next regular meeting is scheduled for June 9, 2021 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
In order to comply with COVID-19 limited in-person meetings and social distancing requirements, this 
meeting will be conducted using the online video conferencing service provider Zoom. Meeting details will 
be provided on the Agenda and posted on the Ellington webpage (www.ellington-ct.gov), Agenda & Minutes, 
Economic Development Commission. Need assistance or have questions, please contact the Ellington 
Planning Department at 860-870-3120. 
 
Join Zoom Meeting:    Dial by your location: 
https://zoom.us/j/94814110855                             +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 948 1411 0855   Meeting ID: 948 1411 0855   
Password: 969680    Passcode: 969680 
 
 

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120         TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE   FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

https://zoom.us/j/94814110855
http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


Ellington, CT 
Market Analysis

• 7, 13, and 23-min drive time trade areas
• Town municipal borders

1



Market Summary
Town of Ellington, CT (municipal borders)

2



Retail Market Gap Analysis
Town of Ellington, CT (municipal borders)

Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are 
excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount spent by consumers at retail 
establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars. The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a 
snapshot of retail opportunity. This is a measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges 
from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail opportunity 
outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are 
drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap represents the difference between Retail Potential and 
Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their 
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail 
Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. 

3



Business Summary
Town of Ellington, CT 7, 13, 23-minute drive times

4

Source:  Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2017. Date 
Note: Data on the Business Summary report is calculated using Esri’s Data allocation method which uses census block 
groups to allocate business summary data to custom areas.

Business Summary

Ellington, Connecticut Prepared by Goman+York Property Advisors
Drive Time: 7, 13, 23 minute radii Latitude: 41.90410

Longitude: -72.46913

Data for all businesses in area 7 minutes 13 minutes 23 minutes
Total Businesses: 414 1,870 9,359
Total Employees: 3,940 17,857 117,457
Total Residential Population: 12,295 62,868 244,974
Employee/Residential Population Ratio 
(per 100 Residents)

32 28 48

Businesses Employees Businesses Employees Businesses Employees

by SIC Codes # % # % # % # % # % # %

Agriculture & Mining 11 2.7% 64 1.6% 46 2.5% 307 1.7% 227 2.4% 1,573 1.3%
Construction 50 12.1% 307 7.8% 202 10.8% 1,173 6.6% 827 8.8% 4,856 4.1%
Manufacturing 21 5.1% 525 13.3% 71 3.8% 1,777 10.0% 467 5.0% 17,082 14.5%
Transportation 14 3.4% 97 2.5% 43 2.3% 428 2.4% 198 2.1% 3,310 2.8%
Communication 2 0.5% 12 0.3% 14 0.7% 74 0.4% 68 0.7% 698 0.6%
Utility 3 0.7% 14 0.4% 7 0.4% 107 0.6% 30 0.3% 586 0.5%
Wholesale Trade 18 4.3% 186 4.7% 61 3.3% 682 3.8% 406 4.3% 5,627 4.8%

Retail Trade Summary
74 17.9% 827 21.0% 360 19.3% 3,244 18.2% 2,109 22.5

%
30,257 25.8%

Home Improvement 7 1.7% 51 1.3% 31 1.7% 188 1.1% 159 1.7% 1,999 1.7%
General Merchandise Stores 3 0.7% 16 0.4% 9 0.5% 144 0.8% 75 0.8% 3,905 3.3%
Food Stores 9 2.2% 289 7.3% 45 2.4% 876 4.9% 237 2.5% 5,103 4.3%
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto 
Aftermarket

16 3.9% 193 4.9% 49 2.6% 400 2.2% 236 2.5% 2,662 2.3%

Apparel & Accessory Stores 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 12 0.6% 23 0.1% 155 1.7% 2,138 1.8%
Furniture & Home Furnishings 6 1.4% 48 1.2% 29 1.6% 149 0.8% 161 1.7% 1,707 1.5%
Eating & Drinking Places 17 4.1% 145 3.7% 91 4.9% 1,063 6.0% 511 5.5% 8,854 7.5%
Miscellaneous Retail 17 4.1% 86 2.2% 94 5.0% 401 2.2% 576 6.2% 3,889 3.3%

Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary 34 8.2% 145 3.7% 147 7.9% 728 4.1% 736 7.9% 4,653 4.0%
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions 3 0.7% 19 0.5% 17 0.9% 93 0.5% 136 1.5% 1,296 1.1%
Securities Brokers 1 0.2% 2 0.1% 13 0.7% 44 0.2% 85 0.9% 347 0.3%
Insurance Carriers & Agents 6 1.4% 38 1.0% 32 1.7% 193 1.1% 172 1.8% 983 0.8%
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment 
Offices

23 5.6% 86 2.2% 85 4.5% 399 2.2% 343 3.7% 2,028 1.7%

Services Summary
152 36.7% 1,643 41.7% 716 38.3% 8,260 46.3% 3,475 37.1

%
40,750 34.7%

Hotels & Lodging 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 5 0.3% 108 0.6% 56 0.6% 1,365 1.2%
Automotive Services 17 4.1% 113 2.9% 69 3.7% 391 2.2% 307 3.3% 1,885 1.6%
Motion Pictures & Amusements 11 2.7% 114 2.9% 50 2.7% 439 2.5% 257 2.7% 2,219 1.9%
Health Services 23 5.6% 358 9.1% 107 5.7% 1,703 9.5% 585 6.3% 9,844 8.4%
Legal Services 5 1.2% 13 0.3% 30 1.6% 102 0.6% 115 1.2% 554 0.5%
Education Institutions & Libraries 13 3.1% 489 12.4% 51 2.7% 2,190 12.3% 210 2.2% 8,742 7.4%

Other Services
83 20.0% 556 14.1% 404 21.6% 3,327 18.6% 1,945 20.8

%
16,141 13.7%

Government 26 6.3% 119 3.0% 134 7.2% 1,066 6.0% 476 5.1% 7,831 6.7%

Unclassified Establishments 11 2.7% 0 0.0% 68 3.6% 11 0.1% 342 3.7% 234 0.2%

Totals 414 100% 3,940 100% 1,870 100% 17,857 100% 9,359 100% 117,457 100%



Market Summary
7 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St, Ellington, CT

Source: Contains data provided by the American Community Survey (ACS), Esri, and Bureau of Labor Statistics. 
Vintage 2011-2015, 2017

5



Retail Market Gap Analysis
7 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT

6



Market Summary
13 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT

Source: Contains data provided by the American Community Survey (ACS), Esri, and Bureau of Labor Statistics. 
Vintage 2011-2015, 2017

7



Retail Market Gap Analysis
13 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT

8



Retail Market Gap Analysis
23 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT

Source: Contains data provided by the American Community Survey (ACS), Esri, and Bureau of Labor Statistics. 
Vintage 2011-2015, 2017

9



Retail Market Gap Analysis
23 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT

10



Commercial Rent Comparison

Currently on the market:

• Office
• 105 West Rd - $13.00/SF/Yr + utilities;  Built 1995
• 100 West Rd- $12.00/SF/Yr+ Utilities; Built 1998

• Retail
• 287 Somers Rd- $18.00/SF/Yr + Utilities; Built 1827
• 175 West Rd- Not disclosed; Built 1995

• Industrial:
• NONE LISTED

11

105 West Rd. 



Housing Market Analysis

Average monthly rent in Ellington, CT (Source: ApartmentGuide.com)
• Studio: $1349 
• 1 bedroom: $1426
• 2 bedrooms: $1720 
• 3 bedrooms: $1958 
• Median rent in Ellington, CT: $1,800, increase of 13% from April 2017 (Source: 

trulia.com)
Average monthly rent in Tolland County, CT – 1Q2018, all housing types (Source: CT 
MLS)
• <2 bedrooms: $1,120 ($/SF)
• 3 bedrooms: $1,549 ($/SF)
• >4 bedrooms: $2,002
Assuming average footprints of 550 SF (Studio), 725 SF (1BR), 1,100 SF (2BR), 1,400 
SF (3BR). 12



Housing Market Analysis

13

Ellington Multi-Family Unit Mix
Apartment/Condos # units 1 BDRM2 BDRM3 BDRM4 BDRM
107 Main St 5
17-21 Tomoka Avenue Apartments 5
1776 Townhouse 48 48
69 Maple St "Dr. Allen Hyde" 7
Abbott Place (Abbottville Inc) 54 0 30 23 1
Arbor Commons Apts 28 28
Autumn Chase 332 97 235
Chaserall Meadows 60 0 43 17 0
Cider Mill Heights 38 4 34
Cornfield 215 173 42
Deer Valley South 256 127 129
Deer Valley North 200 100 100
Ellington Ridge 158 132 26
Fieldstone Village 48 40 8
High Meadow Apts 100 100
Johnny Appleseed 120 96 24
Meadowbrook 129 129
Pinney Brook I 20 20
Pinney Brook II 19 19
Pinney Hill Apts 69 69
Pinney St. Apts 16
Ellington Meadows (f/k/a Center Village) 49 10 39
Stonebridge Apts 79 79
Town House Garden Apts 48 48
Watercrest Townhouses 8 8
Windermere Village 95 1 27 63 4
Victorian Arms 50 50



Rental Housing Analysis
Relevant Multi-family Properties

Name Town Year 
Built Bedrooms Sq. ft. 

(min)
Sq. ft. 
(max)

$/SF
min

$/SF 
max

Rent/mo
min

Rent/mo
max

The Mansions 
at Hockanum

Crossing
Vernon 2005

1 720 1,175 $1.27 $1.52 $1,095 $1,495

2 1,000 1,675 $1.04 $1.35 $1,345 $1,745

Ivy Woods 
Apartments Tolland 2005

1 922 982 $1.04 $1.11 $1,025 $1,025

2 1,090 1,132 $1.15 $1.10 - $1,300

Norwegian 
Woods Apts. Tolland -

1 618 618 $1.45 $1.60 $895 $990

2 732 925 $1.51 $1.58 $1,105 $1,465

Aspen Woods Manchester 1997
1 820 820 $1.57 $1.57 $1,290 $1,290

2 1,100 1,179 $1.26 $1.31 $1,440 $1,490

Broadleaf 
Apartments Manchester 2015

1 790 981 $1.66 $1.78 $1,410 $1,630

2 1,031 1,185 $1.54 $1.54 $1,590 $1,825

Lofts at the 
Mills Manchester 2010

Studio 990 990 $0.99 $1.14 $985 $1,130
1 686 1,554 $0.80 $1.41 $965 $1,250
2 1,385 1,778 $0.74 $0.95 $1,311 $1,318

3 1,596 2,083 $0.97 $1.28 $1,555 $1,625

The Pavilions Manchester 2000

1 688 1,059 $1.29 $1.48 $1,020 $1,370
2 920 1,294 $1.15 $1.30 $1,200 $1,490

3 1,246 1,246 $1.19 $1.36 $1,480 $1,700

The Place at 
Catherine's Way Manchester 1997

1 690 855 $1.64 $1.99 $1,370 $1,400

2 989 1,350 $1.36 $1.39 $1,375 $1,840

3 1,160 1,700 $1.02 $1.27 $1,475 $1,735

The Vintage at 
the Grove Manchester 2008

Studio 701 701 $1.64 $1.76 $1,150 $1,235

1 814 1,014 $1.56 $1.72 $1,397 $1,580

2 1,182 1,391 $1.33 $1.41 $1,575 $1,968

Autumn 
Chase Ellington 1997

1 920 1,053 $1.32 $1.41 $1,295 $1,395

2 1,126 1,450 $1.17 $1.29 $1,450 $1,695

Johnny 
Appleseed Ellington 1985

1 722 722 $1.38 $1.45 $995 $1,050

2 852 892 $1.45 $1.47 $1,250 $1,295

The Tannery Glastonbury 2016
studio 423 680 $2.22 $2.35 $938 $1,600
1 BR 605 972 $2.57 $2.61 $1,580 $2,500
2 BR 976 1,338 $1.87 $2.00 $1,950 $2,500

Addison Mill 
Apartments Glastonbury 2009

1 BR 748 1,038 $1.80 $2.17 $1,625 $1,865

2 BR 1298 1,360 $1.80 $1.81 $2,350 $2,450

14



Tapestry Segment Area Profile

15



16

24.3%



17

20.9%



18

17.9%



19

14.2%



20

12.9%



21

9.9%



Town of Ellington 
Economic Development Commission 

Minutes 
April 14, 2021 
Page 1 of 3 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 14, 2021, 7:00 PM 
 ZOOM MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Chairman Sean Kelly, Vice Chairman Donna Resutek, Regular Members Chris Todd, 

David Hurley and Jim Fay and Alternates Bryan Platt and Amos Smith 
 
ABSENT:   Alternate Susan Conte 
 
STAFF  
PRESENT: Lisa M. Houlihan, Town Planner and Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Sean Kelly called the Economic Development Commission 

meeting to order at 7:04 PM. 
 
II.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (on non-agenda items):  None 
 
III.  ACTIVE BUSINESS:  
 

1. Report: Tolland County Chamber of Commerce  
 
Ms. Houlihan reported the Tolland County Chamber Tag Sale Trail will be held on April 24th 
and 25th, which is open to anyone that is within the district. She noted the Chamber already 
has 60 people signed up to participate in the event. 

 
2. Report:  Agricultural Initiatives - Nothing new to report, at this time. 

 
3. Report:  Connecticut Economic Development Association Best Practices 

 
Chairman Kelly went out of agenda order and discussed item b first and then returned to 
item a. 

 
b. Completed Economic Development Strategies – 2019 Plan of Conservation & 

Development Chapter 6, and update of Business Information Packet and EDC website. 
 

Chairman Kelly referred to the memo received from Lisa Houlihan dated April 9, 2021. 
He noted the Capital Improvement Program request (FY21/22) is pending town approval 
to fund a project to create Village District Zoning discussed within the Plan of 
Conservation and Development (POCD) for approximately 230 acres of 
undeveloped/under-developed land in the eastern portion of Town Center. The project 
will involve extensive community outreach, market analysis, and creation of mixed-use 
planning concepts to market to the development community.  
 
Chairman Kelly cited new zoning regulations that have been adopted creating additional 
standards for Article 6 Land Use & Site Development Regulations of the Ellington Zoning 

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120         TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE   FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


Town of Ellington 
Economic Development Commission 

Minutes 
April 14, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Regulations to add Section 6.5 Sidewalks & Fee-In-Lieu-of Sidewalks (effective 
November 1, 2020) and Section 6.6 Access Management (effective April 1, 2021). He 
noted the sidewalk project for Route 83 is ongoing and state funding has been approved. 
Ms. Houlihan added necessary easements have been obtained, design issues have 
been addressed and a commitment to fund letter should be obtained within the next 
month. The Town will then put the project out for bid and construction could start as 
soon as later this season or next year.   
 
Chairman Kelly reviewed what is currently in the Business Information Packet that is 
mailed out to new business owners in town, such as the Ellington Tax Abatement Policy 
Informational Document, C-Pace (Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy 
Program), Tolland County Chamber of Commerce Membership Information, Present 
year’s Economic Development Commission schedule, and the Current Town Profile 
provided by AdvanceCT formerly known as Connecticut Economic Resource Center 
(CERC). He asked the commission if there was anything in the packet that they would 
like to see omitted or anything that they would like to see added or changed within the 
packet. Alternate Platt asked about potentially adding some of the demographics from 
the POCD. Ms. Houlihan said she would have those documents added to their packets 
next month for them to review and potentially add to the EDC webpage and packet.  
Alternate Smith asked what is driving the increase in students over the years, is it 
housing stock or apartments? Alternate Platt and Commissioner Resutek agreed they 
feel it could be both housing and apartments that have been constructed over the years. 
 
Ms. Houlihan said will include electronic copies of the demographic reports from the 
POCD to the commission so they will be able to review and decide what information they 
would like to see on the webpage. Ms. Houlihan mentioned AdvancedCT now offers five 
free commercial/industrial properties listings municipalities to list on their Site Finder 
Site. She explained the possibility of adding a layer to the town’s GIS system for listing 
properties that are currently available for sale or rent for commercial/industrial 
properties.  She will report back to the commission about availability and cost next 
month.  Commissioner Hurley said there are companies that find site locations for 
companies and they seem to be the prime folks that get companies to locate someplace. 
AdvancedCT provides the brokers with a data base to locate sites.  He recommends 
providing the larger site first.  Ms. Houlihan said she will explore the MapGeo option. 
 

a. Discuss future Shop Ellington event  
 
Ms. Houlihan said she sent out an email to a sample of local businesses asking if they 
would be interested in having a Business Showcase event.  She stated she spoke with 
Rice Packaging and they are on board with the idea. The commission round tabled 
about a possible date and location for the event. They tentatively agreed to hold the 
event on Saturday, September 18th from 11 am to 2 pm or possibility doing it in October. 
Ms. Houlihan suggested conducting a survey to get feedback from the business owners 
in town. The commission discussed the pros and cons of holding the event at the 
farmer’s market, utilizing the elementary parking lot, the senior center, or having it at the 
high school. No firm decisions were made on a date or location. 
 

4. Report:  Tax Incentive/Abatement Programs 
 

      a. Update on Tax Abatement Program amendments. 
 
          Chairman Kelly was pleased to announce that the Board of Selectmen approved the 

changes to the Tax Abatement Policy adding abatement schedules, new definitions and 
recapture clause for businesses.   



Town of Ellington 
Economic Development Commission 

Minutes 
April 14, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
5. Report:  Current Economic Activity  

 
Ms. Galovich told the commission DiFiore’s Pasta is seeking a Certificate of Occupancy 
from the Building Department next week and should be open for business soon thereafter. 
Ms. Houlihan said Cold Creek and Hidden Still are seeking approval to permanently expand 
their outdoor dining areas, and site plan modifications will be overseen by staff versus 
having to formally apply to the Planning and Zoning Commission as a measure to provide 
relief from restrictions placed on restaurants due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Alternate Platt 
mentioned the State of Connecticut is proposing to relax outdoor dining requirements to 
April 1, 2022. Ms. Houlihan mentioned Oakridge Dairy is seeking approval from the Water 
Pollution Control Authority about extending the sewer service district and sewer main down 
Jobs Hill Road to their site.  She shared her screen and showed the commission where the 
Town is proposing to expand the sewer access. She explained that American Rescue Plan 
funds may be used to support the infrastructure project. 
 
Commissioner Hurley inquired about the wireless 5G correspondence that he forwarded to 
Ms. Houlihan via email prior to last month’s meeting. He noted new laws only give towns 60 
days to review 5G applications, if no action is taken by the Town, the application is 
automatically approved.  Chairman Kelly said the commission discussed the topic last month 
and sent a referral to the Planning & Zoning Commission supporting regulations that 
enables 5G accessibility for Ellington business and residents while setting standards to 
protect viewshed, aesthetics and right-of-ways. 
 

IV.  ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS:  
 

1. Approval of the March 10, 2021 regular meeting minutes.  
 

MOVED (SMITH) SECONDED (PLATT) AND PASSED (HURLEY ABSTAINED) TO 
APPROVE THE MARCH 10, 2021 MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN.  
 
2.  Correspondence 
 
Chairman Kelly reviewed the proposed solar project at 277 Sadds Mill Road.  They are looking 
to develop 30 acres of the project site. A copy of the formal application was submitted to the 
Town Clerks Office.  Chairman Kelly stated the developer has been working on the project for 
the past few years.   

 
V.   ADJOURNMENT: 
 

MOVED (HURLEY) SECONDED (SMITH) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ADJOURN 
THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING AT 8:09 PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 


	WEDNESDAY, MAY 12, 2021, 7:00 PM
	I.  CALL TO ORDER:
	Ellington CT Market Analysis  - 2019 POCD.pdf
	Ellington, CT �Market Analysis
	Market Summary�Town of Ellington, CT (municipal borders)
	Retail Market Gap Analysis�Town of Ellington, CT (municipal borders)
	Business Summary�Town of Ellington, CT 7, 13, 23-minute drive times
	Market Summary�7 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St, Ellington, CT
	Retail Market Gap Analysis�7 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT
	Market Summary�13 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT
	Retail Market Gap Analysis�13 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT
	Retail Market Gap Analysis�23 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT
	Retail Market Gap Analysis�23 min drive time trade area – 12 Church St. Ellington, CT
	Commercial Rent Comparison
	Housing Market Analysis
	Housing Market Analysis
	Rental Housing Analysis�Relevant Multi-family Properties
	Tapestry Segment Area Profile
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21

	04-14-2021 EDC Minutes final.pdf
	WEDNESDAY, APRIL 14, 2021, 7:00 PM


